Public Document Pack

-

207 HYNDBURN

. The place to be

(DU tRUDERR

) » an excellent council

Planning (Trees) Sub- .
Committee e—
Monday, 13th March, 2023 at 10.00 am,
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington

Membership

Chair: Councillor Caroline Montague
Vice-Chair: Councillor

Councillors Judith Addison, Terry Hurn and Bernard Dawson MBE

AGENDA

The following item is submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in accordance with
Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason being that the item needs to be
considered within a deadline.

1 Appointment of the Chair

To appoint a Chair at the start of the meeting in the absence of a vice chair.

Recommended — That a Chair be appointed.

2 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions and Declarations of Interest and
Dispensations

3 Minutes of the last Meeting (Pages 3 - 4)

LARGE PRINT Telephone Enquiries: Rachael Calvert, Democratic Services, 01254 380136
LE .
A’ Email: rachael.calvert@hyndburnbc.gov.uk
Published on Date Not Specified
Page 1 of 2




To submit the minutes of the last meeting of the Planning (Trees) Sub-Committee
held on 2" November 2021 for approval as a correct record.

Recommended — That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct
record.

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - Tree Preservation Order(s) (Pages 5 - 16)

To recommend the protection of The Woodland adjacent to Heys Lane (Railway
Reclamation Site), Gt Harwood, BB6 7UA through the use of a Tree Preservation
Order.

Recommended — That the Tree Preservation Order (TPO) be confirmed and
made permanent.

Page 2 of 2



Agenda Iltem 3

PLANNING (TREES) SUB-COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 2nd November, 2021

Present: Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair),
Councillors June Harrison, Terry Hurn and Caroline Montague

Apologies Councillors: Judith Addison and Eamonn Higgins

162 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations

Apologies were submitted on behalf of Councillor Eamonn Higgins. Councillor June
Harrison acted as his substitute. Apologies were also received from Councillor Judith
Addison who arrived after the closure of the meeting, due to public transport difficulties.

There were no declarations of interest or dispensations.
163 Minutes of the Last Meeting

The minutes of the last Planning (Trees) Sub-Committee held on the 22" July 2021 were
submitted for approval as a correct record.

Resolved — That the minutes be received and approved as a correct record.
164 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - Tree Preservation Order(s)

The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report in respect of Application
11/21/0395 — an application to undertake works to trees protected by Tree Preservation
Order W1 — 1997 / 3 Shop Lane, Broad Oak.

The application had been provided to the Sub-Committee because the applicant worked for
the Council.

The applicant was seeking to remove a number of branches from trees adjacent to their
house at 43 Manchester Road, Accrington, BB5 2BW. The protected trees were in close
proximity to the southern gable end of the house. The proximity and scale of the trees was
such that they resulted in loss of light to the windows, and in places, branches were leaning
on the gutters and roof.

The recommendation was that consent be granted to remove overhanging branches from
the protected trees up to the boundary, subject to a number of informatives being included
in the decision letter.

The Chair enquired about whether any such works had been undertaken before. The Chief
Planning and Transportation Officer was not aware of any such previous works and it was
understood that the applicant had not lived at that address for very long. The Chair also
asked about whether the use of a qualificatied contractor was monitored. Officers
responded that advice about using appropriately qualified contractors was provided in the
informatives, but the applicant’s engagement of contractors was not normally monitored.
There were no concerns about the likelihood of harm arising from the work, as this was
essentially to remove overhanging branches only.

1 Page 3



The trees were part of a protected woodland and there were other individual Tree
Preservation Orders in force in the vicinity also.

Resolved — That consent be granted to remove overhanging branches from the
protected trees up to the boundary, subject to the informatives, as outlined in the
report, being included in the decision letter.

Chair of the meeting
At which the minutes were confirmed

2 Page 4



Agenda Iltem 4

REPORT TO: Trees Sub Committee

DATE: 13 March 2023

PORTFOLIO: Clir Miles Parkinson, Leader

REPORT AUTHOR: Katy Morley, Arboricultural and Conservation Officer

TITLE OF REPORT:

New Tree Preservation Order — 2022/ 1 Heys Lane
(Railway Reclamation Site), Gt Harwood, BB6 7UA

KEY DECISION:

No

If yes, date of notice:

2022

Purpose of Report

To recommend the protection of The Woodland adjacent to Heys Lane (Railway Reclamation
Site), Gt Harwood, BB6 7UA through the use of a Tree Preservation Order.

[VE L ET A

'y
2

i \\\\‘
2 b

(

o

4\{\1\

wF i .
© Crown Copyright, Crown copyright and Database rights 2021, Ordnance Survey LA 100022321 A® Local Government Information House Limited, |Standard Graphics

! > i
B A LR
!
i

b5

- @ o N (@@ O 7 ’ﬁ/:;:’,’g,
fﬂil = “‘§\w' ; /:/;/
: \\‘\\§\\\§ e

A |

Fig 1 Map Showing site of Heys Lane 2022 /1 Tree Preservation Order

Page 5



Fig 2. — Plan showing position of damaged Woodland.

Google

Fig. 3 — Picture taken of Woodland in 2018 prior to illegal felling

Page 6



= o X = ~ R \ % (W 2
Fig. 4 — Picture taken of Woodland in 2020 after illegal felling

2.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

P I
V.
~ 1 4

Background

On Tuesday 7™ January 2020 HBC Tree Officer received a CRM (Customer related
management) Ticket from the police stating that a member of the public had reported that
someone had been felling trees on the previous Sunday 5th January 2020 at the Railway
Reclamation Site to the north of Heys Lane at Gt Harwood. A plan illustrating the location
of the site is attached at Fig.1.

Some of the trees had been left in a dangerous state where uncontrolled felling had taken
place, trees and branches had fallen over the boundary between the woodland and the
neighbouring haulage company, trees had been felled onto the public footpath, trees had been
left hung up in other trees and one tree, in particular, had been partially cut through and the left
when the saws chain had become trapped leaving the tree in a very precarious condition. The
Council had to send an emergency gang to fell this tree immediately. The public footpath was
blocked with fallen trees making it impossible to access.

Although part of the woodland and some individual trees were protected by a tree preservation
order made in 1978, the majority of the woodland along the old railway line was not. This
woodland is immediately adjacent to one of the main arterial routes into Great Harwood and
has high amenity value. There is also a well-used public right of way passing through the
woodland. The trees comprising the woodland are generally in good health and the woodland
as a whole has ecological value. For these reasons | believed that the woodland should be
protected by a tree preservation order as a means of preventing further trees being felled.

To fell the trees would remove a number of healthy trees from the landscape which
enhances the structure and appearance of the area and also provides space for wildlife.
When preparing the TPO a land registry search was also carried out to clarify who owned

Page 7



2.6

2.8

the land. Lancashire County Council owned the land and Hyndburn Borough Council are a
lessee with responsibility for managing the woodland.

When making Tree Preservation Orders it is necessary to assess the amenity value of the
trees. As well as considering the condition and species of the tree(s) to be protected it is
also necessary to consider factors such as the lifespan of the tree, relative public visibility,
historic or habitat value, the form of the tree and whether it is rare or unusual. The
assessment also considers whether the extent to which the tree is at risk of being felled or
damaged. A scoring system is used to determine whether the tree merits protection.

An assessment of these trees has been undertaken and is included at Appendix 1. The
scores indicate that the Woodland merits protection. Given the illegal felling already
carried out it is considered that there is a “foreseeable” threat to the trees.

The Council made a temporary TPO on September 2022 and this provides protection for a
maximum of 6 months. Local residents and councillors have been consulted. The following
were consulted:

. Chatburn Close, Gt Harwood nos. 14, 17, 19 & 21

. Sawley Drive nos: Hernemede, Abilene, Fairhaven, 65 &76a
° Whalley Road no 78

o 2 Heys Lane, Gt Harwood

o ClIrs Bernadette Parkinson, Jenny Molineux, Noordad Aziz, Patrick McGinley and
Stephanie Haworth.

° Lancashire County Council

Objections / representations
One objection was received, the reason being:

“I oppose this TPO because the trees should be trimmed to provide sight lines/splays to a
distance of 90 metres from all junctions and entrances off Hyndburn Road and Heys Lane.”

Other reason as below:

Page 8



31/10/2022

Dear Sirs

Objection to proposed TPO applied for 22/9/2022 at (W1) Land
leased by HBC in 1987 known as mainline railway track and other land
at bottom of St Hubert's Street/Alan Ramsbottom Way Great
Harwood.

This objection is raised because the Council does not own all of the
land outlined in the title attached to the TPO request. The land
leased from LCC comprised two detached parcels of land with the
total area being approximately equal to the area of the TPO, however
not in the location stated in the TPO.

The trees within the area leased by the Council are in poor condition,
though the trees in the surrounding area are in excellent condition,
This should not be the case as the 1974 lease, renewed in 1987,
contained very restrictive covenants which required the land to be
kept in an excellent state of repair for the benefit of the local
community. This is on both parcels of land. A TPO would not serve
any greater purpose than the current lease which is not being
observed.

The Town and Country Planning Act prevents trees above 1m tall within
10 metres of the Highway curtilage (including the footpath), however
there are several trees within the proposal of the TPO which
contravene this legal requirement.

Page 9




T oppose this TPO because the trees should be trimmed to provide
sight lines/splays to a distance of 90 metres from all junctions and
entrances off Hyndburn Road and Heys Lane.

Alan Ramsbottom Way, the newly adopted Highway also requires all of
the trees reducing in height to meet the requirements of the Town
and Country Planning Act.

There are further frees covered by a TPOs (corner of Alan
Ramsbottom Way and Heys Lane) which require severe pruning to
meet the Town and Country Planning Act.

I think that it is a good idea to have individual TPOs (like the one
covering the corner of Heys Lane) which protect the mature trees
adequately.

As you may be aware, a woodland TPO explicitly bans public access to
the site as all trees, even saplings and shoots, are instantly covered
so cannot be trodden underfoot without an offence being committed,
whether or not the Council chooses to enforce this law.

Please consider this objection and the suggestions I have proposed.

Page 10



%U‘“L"g*z@ﬁbﬁmpfﬁw R\ QP S i - C #\2[/‘ D/ 292 2

: weod AT Maw Qe ML\.W:“{b] e
@_@»ﬁu“ QJ/M&(A{MV\/ CThEe tAND %Z?MH“:‘E?? \:\;%ms g,
NLWODp |
Oﬁs\)e&@@m hecavse  He Concid Apes,
not own all Mo ek desdinded o He
TPo.

The  Concl | a doeedy bk by oy
‘ (tag ‘

e lo ™Mk e b mmalin et
Ul eeg Fot) e (L BeTH earcecs )

/Tff. - Nd‘r\mf Aok PWW&’\ m e / N
fuk bl 1w % He A?AW‘“ Chel, PaTr) AN®

TNereE Lo 08 tresS  tu Whia Mgk Cuedel g €T R LeGac \-\G\C’\H"\‘\

Nl Dﬁspm ﬁ}@-eawgz_ Frex Roded o himme o
'é@ \ pwwbz 9{7&. ‘(/191-‘74 Wﬁbw%m 4% Mﬁ“‘{&“m PB@J/
Al e M‘?f(j& JLME . ﬁ’w\ QM\; éﬂ{,(lvm Me%, ‘, T

FREWLY g Lygned nENS L ANE '

| WS
Adobled. food ALBC Refave Treds eemovng Fo €8qued Mg |

(1 gelave Ve may ke Some ofher TPOS  on Wk land thob oty "l
3 490‘{&,{4"(1 "T‘Gw/\-*q-(?@ml\,:ﬁ R)\Of/\{\(/\ﬁ L‘m\)'-? U Tl b ‘

e e T e e R T D R e o o e e e B )

AﬁW\@V A

TeRS , A3

: ~ s e hStaalg
Tue PUBLIC, an all TreeCeven Ty o - wSNly covered | 3o
cant ge Tramfled o0 A Pouh OF LaWw) BuT A vAiw one |

Page 11



: g‘; ’ AL MW CIVE BALLWAA ~uac e N ‘
@aﬂ—’” — ”/Mﬁw[am OThER LAND BTN IR sr g ggensS 8T,
4 R UL T

@&\)@Q,{:W hecavse  fe Cancd  dpec
Nt own ald Mo fand  dedrded o Mo

T %P0,
The. g&uf\é{) ate abeed?, bound éﬂ erns #-
e lonee dh Lec o Mankin e fund’s

CUAA *%J’uu. { & ‘{f Q BTV  PARLCEdS 3

Tee Nd’“’“””? Aek poventy  Hees  sve—  Im
%”Mk wiblin [om é?L e va\f//k Chcl PaTr) AN®
e " " \

ThertS o™ 0F TweeS ty W Mok Cuwk SR TR0 (eGac WEWGHT

Al Qﬁspm iua-emgﬁ_ o okt Feoane.of
- Previde Seade ‘_[J-M ﬂﬂwﬁd“’“’/’%ﬂ% 45 Hordbinn Roq ,17/
‘3‘1 and eewe Meﬁ; ane . Pl Rans botloom 7

*‘“NEWLV pa C_\CerO\ HTNS L ANE
“
A dobled Load ALBO peqowe Toeel €

(1 peleve Hue may e Some other TPOS  on ek land thoh aéwz@,

1
waﬁ“ g ~euAe
Emauing o &eq,w—eck Highe

30 agust (—w TO Wil C‘@mh\ﬂ Planning gm\;g Tl \pah
S o Cf,ﬁbﬂ“{ Lhea YO haot @ wdwvidua) ‘T‘?@‘S‘ Pk en W
. { o4 ‘ - K o l
Teds | 4y m Swe YowR awWNR,)a wodland T PO, Bans
Twe PuBLc, o all Tree (even Ty ool U W,‘Wl\_ﬂ} Co wvered ; So
cat e TramPled o0 . p  Pouk oF LalW) BuT A VAL one
residents & councillors had until October 2022 to write in with their comments the only comment to
come in was on 1% November 2022.

The information in the objection is misconstrued:

1/

Page 12



This objection is raised because the Council does not own all of the
land outlined in the title attached to the TPO request. The land
leased from LCC comprised two detached parcels of land with the
total area being approximately equal to the area of the TPO, however
not in the location stated in the TPO.

The Council lease the land on which the TPO is made from LCC and is therefore responsible for the
upkeep and protection.

As there is only one parcel of land on which the TPO is being made it is unclear to what parcels they
are referring to.

The trees within the area leased by the Council are in poor condition,
though the trees in the surrounding area are in excellent condition.
This should not be the case as the 1974 lease, renewed in 1987,
contained very restrictive covenants which required the land to be
kept in an excellent state of repair for the benefit of the local
community. This is on both parcels of land. A TPO would not serve
any greater purpose than the current lease which is not being
,, observed.

The person is not a qualified Arborist so cannot comment on the condition of the trees whether they
are in a good or bad condition.

The TPO is there to legally protect the trees, the lease does not do this.

The Town and Country Planning Act prevents trees above 1m tall within

10 metres of the Highway curtilage (including the footpath), however

there are several trees within the proposal of the TPO which
5 contravene this legal requirement.

The Town and Country Planning act does not prevent trees above 1m tall within 10mentres of the
Highway.

T oppose this TPO because the trees should be trimmed to provide
sight lines/splays to a distance of 90 metres from all junctions and
4, entrances off Hyndburn Road and Heys Lane.

Trees covered by a TPO can be cut back from the Highway if they are interfering with the passage of
traffic which include sight lines, by the Highway Authority without permission as one of the
exemptions. There is a statutory distance of 5.2m high over a road and 2.4m high over a footpath.

Page 13



5/
Alan Ramsbottom Way, the newly adopted Highway also requires all of

the trees reducing in height to meet the requirements of the Town
and Country Planning Act.

There are further trees covered by a TPOs (corner of Alan
Ramsbottom Way and Heys Lane) which require severe pruning to
meet the Town and Country Planning Act.

This is not the case

6/
As you may be aware, a woodland TPO explicitly bans public access to

the site as all trees, even saplings and shoots, are instantly covered
so cannot be trodden underfoot without an offence being committed,
whether or not the Council chooses to enforce this law.

A woodland TPO does allow public access (providing it is not on private land) but does not allow any
trees or sapling to be felled or uprooted without permission of the local Authority.

4, Officers Observations

4.1 That having taken into account the representations made the Tree Preservation Order be
made.

Detrimental effect on Quality of Life

4.2 The mature woodland of mainly Ash, Alder and Cherry forms the backdrop to the Great
Harwood Heys Lane railway woodland walk. The woodland and its central path follows the
route of the former Great Harwood-Padiham railway loop from Heys Lane to Whalley road, a
distance of 0.5Km. The path is frequented by dog walkers, pedestrians, cyclists and the like.
As well as providing screening against negative industrial and residential uses the woodland
forms a highly attractive visual amenity benefitting the local community, both for personal
pleasure and its wildlife value. The woodland also forms a green gateway into Great Harwood,
located on a main road into the town, thereby providing the town with an aesthetically pleasing
entrance. The felling has removed a large quantity of trees, which is highly visible to path and
road users, and has reduced the amenity of the TPO woodland both to the community and
wildlife.

Persistent and Continuing Nature

Page 14



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

5.1

Over 100 trees within the woodland and at the woodland edge on 2 separate occasions. The
Council has every reason to suppose that trees will continue to be felled, not least because he
has stated so much to the Councils Executive Director (Legal and Democratic Services),
Hyndburn Borough Council.

The person who felled the trees has also previously received a Court injunction elsewhere on
Heys Lane for the same reason.

Unreasonable

The person that felled the trees has been asked to desist from the felling of trees, both in the
presence of Lancashire constabulary Police Officers and also Hyndburn Borough Council
Officers. The trees are protected by merit of TPO, he has refused to stop his activities leaving
no option but to take the action of issuing a ‘warning’ letter under the CPN legislation.

This wooded area is situated adjacent Heys Lane, Gt Harwood and covers approximately 2.3
hectares, the woodland is a highly desirable feature as it highlighted the approach to Gt
Harwood.

The Woodland is in a good condition at this time, but if not protected it will be open to
indiscriminate felling.

The Woodland is an asset to the area in that it provides a beneficial area for walkers and
wildlife, they add value to the character of the area.

Conclusion

That it is imperative that these trees are protected by a TPO to preserve what is left for wildlife
and as an area for recreational use by the public.

Recommendations

To confirm the TPO and make it permanent.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last Meeting
	4 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - Tree Preservation Order(s)

